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MORGAN, LEWIS & BOCKIUSLLP
Joseph Duffy, Bar No. 241854
joseph.duffy@morganlewis.com
Esther K. Ro, Bar No. 252203
esther.ro@morganlewis.com

300 South Grand Avenue
Twenty-Second Floor

LosAngeles, CA 90071-3132

Tel: +1.213.612.2500

Fax: +1.213.612.2501

Attorneys for Defendants

THE GAP, INC., GAP (APPAREL) LLC; GAP
INTERNATIONAL SALES, INC.; BANANA
REPUBLIC LLC; and BANANA REPUBLIC
(APPAREL) LLC

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

LAURIE MUNNING, on behalf of herself and
al others similarly situated,

MPaintiff,
VS.
THE GAP, INC., GAP (APPAREL) LLC;
GAP INTERNATIONAL SALES, INC,
BANANA REPUBLIC LLC; and BANANA
REPUBLIC (APPAREL) LLC,

Defendants.

Case No.

DEFENDANTSTHE GAP, INC., GAP
(APPAREL)LLC, GAP
INTERNATIONAL SALES, INC,,
BANANA REPUBLIC LLC, AND
BANANA REPUBLIC (APPAREL)LLC'S
NOTICE OF REMOVAL

COMPLAINT FILED IN SAN FRANCISCO
SUPERIOR COURT: MAY 25, 2016

COMPLAINT SERVED ON
DEFENDANTS: JUNE 7, 2016

NOTICE OF REMOVAL FILED: JULY 7,
2016
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1332, 1441, 1446, and 1453,
Defendants The Gap, Inc., Gap (Apparel) LLC, Gap International Sales, Inc., Banana Republic
LLC, and Banana Republic (Apparel) LLC, (“Defendants’), by and through their attorneys,
remove to this Court the action entitled Laurie Munning v. The Gap Inc., et al., Case No. CGC-
16-552215 (the “Action”), which was originally filed in the Superior Court of the State of
Cdliforniafor the County of San Francisco.

l. INTRODUCTION

1 As set forth below, this Action is properly removed to this Court pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1441 because this Court has jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C.
§81332(d) (“CAFA"), inthat this Action is acivil action in which the amount in controversy
exceeds the sum of $5,000,000 exclusive of costs and interest, has more than 100 membersin the
proposed putative class, and is between citizens of different states.

2. By filing this notice of removal, Defendants do not intend to waive, and hereby
reserve, any objection as to venue, the legal sufficiency of the claims alleged in the Action, and
al other defenses. Defendants reserve the right to supplement and amend this notice of removal.

. BACKGROUND

3. On May 25, 2016, plaintiff Laurie Munning (“Plaintiff”) commenced this putative
class action by filing a Complaint in the San Francisco Superior Court.

4, The Complaint alleges violations of the Federal Guides Against Deceptive
Pricing, 16 C.F.R. § 233.1, the California Consumer Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA"), Cal. Civ.
Code 8§ 1750, et seq., the California Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code. § 17200,
et seq., the California False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 8§ 17500, et seq., the New
Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-1, et seq., the New Jersey Truth in Consumer
Contract, Warranty and Notice Act, N.J.S.A. 8§ 56:12-14, and violations of various consumer
protection statutes in 49 states and the District of Columbia, against Defendants arising out of the
sale of merchandise at Defendants online Gap Factory store website and Banana Republic
Factory store website. The Complaint further aleges claims for Breach of Contract, Breach of

Contract Under the Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing, Breach of Express

1
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Warranty, Unjust Enrichment, and Negligent Misrepresentation. The Complaint seeks an order
certifying the proposed classes, a declaration that Defendants are financially responsible for
notification of class members, disgorgement of profits, afinding that Defendants' conduct be
adjudged and decreed in violation of all the state laws cited above, injunctive relief, declaratory
relief, damages, including economic, compensatory, punitive, and exemplary damages, interest,
and attorneys' fees.

5. The proposed putative classes consists of “[a]ll United States citizens who
purchased any discounted item from Defendants’ online Gap Factory store website between May
24, 2010 and the present” and “[a]ll United States citizens who purchased any discounted item
from Defendants' online Banana Republic Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the
present.” Complaint §71. Plaintiff also proposes a New Jersey subclass, which hasidentical
features as the two proposed classes, except it includes only New Jersey citizens that purchased
merchandise from Defendants’ online Gap Factory store website and Banana Republic Factory
store website. 1d. 72.

6. Process was served on Defendants on June 7, 2016, by delivery to an agent
authorized by Defendants to receive process.*

7. Defendants have not filed an answer or responsive pleading to the Complaint.
[11.  JURISDICTION

8. CAFA creates federa jurisdiction over lawsuits in which “the matter in
controversy exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs, and isa
classaction inwhich . . . any member of aclass of plaintiffsis acitizen of a State different from
any defendant,” and involves a putative class that consists of more than 100 members. 28 U.S.C.
88 1332(d)(2)(A) and (d)(5). All of these requirements are met here.

A. Minimal Diversity Exists

0. CAFA requires only minimal diversity, and in class action lawsuits, “[t]he district

courts shall have original jurisdiction of any civil action in which . . . any member of a class of

1 The Summons and Complaint, which together comprise “all process, pleadings, and orders served” on Defendants
inthis Action, 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

2
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plaintiffsis acitizen of a State different from any defendant.” 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A).
Diversity of citizenship exists here.

10. Plaintiff isacitizen of New Jersey. Complaint 110 (“Plaintiff Laurie Munning is
an individual and aresident and citizen of New Jersey.”).

11. For purposes of diversity, a corporation is deemed to be acitizen of (1) the state
under whose laws it is organized; and (2) the state of its “principal place of business.” 28 U.S.C.
81332(c)(1). Defendant The Gap, Inc. isa Delaware corporation with its principal place of
businessin the State of California. Complaint §11. Thus, for purposes of CAFA jurisdiction,
Gap, Inc. isacitizen of Delaware and California, and no other state. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(c)(1).

12.  Accordingly, the minimal diversity requirement is satisfied given that Plaintiff isa
citizen of New Jersey and The Gap, Inc. isacitizen of Delaware and California.

B. The Amount In Controver sy Exceeds $5,000,000

13.  Although Defendants deny all liability aleged in the Complaint and deny that
class treatment is appropriate for this Action, if damages or restitution were awarded on
Plaintiff’s claims, the aggregate amount as to the putative class would exceed $5,000,000
exclusive of interests and costs.

14. Defendants deny Plaintiff’ s substantive allegations, deny that Plaintiff is entitled
to any of therelief sought in her Complaint, and do not waive any defense with respect to any of
Plaintiff’s claims. Nonetheless, the amount in controversy is determined by accepting Plaintiff’s
allegations astrue. See, e.qg., Cainv. Hartford Life & Accident Ins. Co., 890 F. Supp. 2d 1246,
1249 (C.D. Cal. 2012) (citing Kenneth Rothschild Trust v. Morgan Stanley Dean Witter, 199 F.
Supp. 2d 993, 1001 (C.D. C4d. 2002) (“In measuring the amount in controversy, a court must
assume that the allegations of the complaint are true and assume that ajury will return averdict
for the plaintiff on all claims made in the complaint.”)); accord Gyorke-Takatri v. Nestle USA,
Inc., Case No. 15-cv-03702-Y GR, 2015 WL 6828258, at *2 (N.D. Ca. Nov. 6, 2015); Asturias
v. Nationstar Mortgage, LLC, Case No. 15-CV-3861 Y GR, 2015 WL 6602022, at *1 (N.D. Cal.
Oct. 30, 2015).
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15.  Caselaw isclear that “[t]he amount-in-controversy alegation of a plaintiff
invoking federal-court jurisdiction is accepted if made in good faith. Similarly, the amount-in-
controversy allegation of a defendant seeking federal-court adjudication should be accepted
when not contested by the plaintiff or questioned by the court.” Dart Cherokee Basin Operating
Co., LLC v. Owens, 135 S. Ct. 547, 549-50 (2014).

16. Here, Plaintiff seeks economic, compensatory, punitive, and exemplary damages,
and requests the Court to “[d]eclare that Defendants must disgorge...all or part of theill-gotten
profits they received...or order Defendants to make full restitution to Plaintiffs and the members
of the classes.” Complaint, Prayer for Relief. In seeking restitution, Plaintiff seeks to represent
“[all United States citizens who purchased any discounted item from Defendants online Gap
Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the present” and “[a]ll United States citizens
who purchased any discounted item from Defendants online Banana Republic Factory store
website between May 24, 2010 and the present.” Complaint  71.

17. Given the volume of sales on Defendants' online Gap Factory store website and
Banana Republic Factory store website, and the amount of potential class members who made
purchases through these websites, the amount in controversy, exclusive of interests and costs,
well exceeds $5,000,000.°

C. The Putative Class Exceeds 100 Members

18. Plaintiff alleges that “[e]ach of the classes...is so numerous that joinder of all
membersisimpracticable.” Complaint 74 (emphasis added).

19. Plaintiff further alleges that “[t]he proposed classes and subclasses are each
composed of at least 10,000 persons.” Complaint g 76.

20. Because the Complaint clearly pleads that more than 100 individuals from the
State of California purchased merchandise from Defendants’ online Gap Factory store website
and Banana Republic Factory store website during the putative class period, the size of the

putative class well exceeds 100 members.

2 The amount in controversy is satisfied, in part, by an examination of Defendant The Gap, Inc.’s Form 10-K
filings. See, e.g., The Gap, Inc., Annual Report (Form 10-K) at 16 (Mar. 21, 2016), available at
http://investors.gapinc.com/phoenix.zhtml2c=111302& p=irol-sec& secCat01.1 rs=1&secCat01.1_rc=10.
4
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V. THE PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR REMOVAL ARE SATISFIED

21.  ThisCourt isthe proper venue for removal because the Action is pending in the
County of San Francisco, California, and the United States District Court for the Northern
District of California, San Francisco Division is the “district and division embracing the place
where such action is pending.” 28 U.S.C. § 1441(a).

22. Defendants timely filed this notice of removal. Defendants were served with the
Complaint on June 7, 2016. Accordingly, Defendants filed this Notice of Removal within 30
days of being served. 28 U.S.C. 88 1446(b); 1453(b).

23.  Asrequired by 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), a copy of this notice of removal is being
promptly served upon counsel for Plaintiff and a copy is being filed with the Clerk of the

Superior Court of the State of Californiafor the County of San Francisco.

Dated: July 7, 2016 MORGAN, LEWIS & BOCKIUSLLP

By /< Joseph Duffy

Joseph Duffy

Esther K. Ro

Attorneys for Defendants

THE GAP, INC., GAP (APPAREL) LLC, GAP
INTERNATIONAL SALES, INC., BANANA
REPUBLIC LLC, and BANANA REPUBLIC
(APPAREL) LLC
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CT Corporation

TO: Amanda Ferguson
The Gap, Inc.
2 Folsom St Dept Law

Service of Process

Transmittal
06/07/2016
CT Log Number 529293008

San Francisco, CA 94105-1205

RE: Process Served in California

FOR: THE GAP, INC. {Domestic State: DE})

ENGLOSED ARE COFIES OF LEGAL PROGESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTORY AGENT OF THE ABOVE CGMPANY AS FOLEOWS:

TITLE OF ACTION:

DOCUMENT(S) SERVED:

COURT/AGENCY:

NATURE OF ACTION:

ON WHOM PROGESS WAS SERVED:

DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE:
JURISDICTION SERVED :
APPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE:

ATTORNEY(S} / SENDER(S):

ACTION ITEMS:

SIGNED:
ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:

LAURIE MUNNING, 1ndiidually and on behalf of all others simitarly situated,
Pltf. vs. THE GAP, INC., et al., Dfts.
Name discrepancy noted.,

Complaint, Exhibit(s), Summans, Cover Sheet(s), Notice(s)

San Francisco County - Superior Court - San Francisco, CA
Case # CGC16552215

VIOLATION OF STATE CONSUMER PROTECTION STATUTES, VIOLATION OF THE
CALIFORNIA CONSUMERS LEGAL REMEDIES ACT and IOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA
UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW

C T Corporation System, Los Angeles, CA

By Process Server on 06/07/2016 at 11:53

California

Within 30 days after service (Document(s) may contain additional answer dates)

Todd M. Friedman

Law Offices of Todd M. Fnedman
324 S. Beverly Dr.

#725

Beverly Hills, CA 90212
877-2026-4741

CT has retained the current log, Retain Date; 06/08/2016, Expected Purge Date:
06/13/2016

Image SOP
Email Notification, Octavia Cruz Octavia_Cruz@gap.com
Email Notification, Emiko Gatineau Emiko_gatineau@gap.com

Emanl Notification, Amanda Ferguson Amanda_Ferguson@gap.com

C T Corporation System
818 West Seventh Street
Los Angeles, CA 90017
213-337-4615

Page 1 of 1/SH

Infarmation displayed on this transmttal 1s for CT
Carporatien's record keeping purposes onty and 1s provided to
the reciprent for quick reference, This information does not
constitite a legal opinfon as to the nature of action, the
amount of damages, the answer date, or any mformation
contained i the documents themselves Reciplent is
responsible for interpreting said docurnents and for taking
appropriate action Signatures on certified mail receipts
confirm receipt of package only, not centents
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COPY

SUM-100
SUMMONS BY FAX FOR COUAT USE ONLY

(C’TAC’ON JUD’C!AL) (S0LO PARA USO OF LA CORTE)

NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:
{AVISO Al. DEMANDADO):

The Gap, Inc.; éap (Apparel) LLC; Gap International Sales, Inc.;
Banana Republic LLC; and Banana Republic (Apparel) LLC

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
{LO ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):

LAURIE MUNNING, individually and on behalf of all others similarly
situated

j

ROTICE! You have !ieen sued The courl may declde against you wilnow your being heard unless you respond within 30 days Read the Information
below

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after thls summons and lagal papers are served on you to fle s wiitten responsu at this court and have 8 copy
served an the plantiff, A tetter or phone call will nod prolect you Your walien rasponse musi be In proper tege! form If you want the court 1o hear your
case, There may be & courl form that you can use fer your response You can find ihese court forms and more informalion al the California Courts
Online Seif-Help Center {www courmfo ca gov/selfhalp), your county law Iibrary, of the courthouse nearest you H yau cannot pay the fling fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee wawer form 1 you do not file your response on time, you may lose the case by defgult, and your wages, money. and property

may be iaken withoul further warning from the count

continuacion

podra quitar su suelda, dinero y bienas sin mas adverlencla

farwrw Iawhelpcalifom'la.org }, an ef Cenlro do Ayuda de las Cortas de Californiy, fwww sucorie ca.

pagar ol gravamen de fa core antes de que la corle pueda dasechar &l caso

There are olher lagal requiremants You may want 1o call an attorney night away. H you do not know an atlorney, you may want to call an atiomey
refarral service i you cannot atford an afiorney, You may be eliglble for free legal services {from a nonprofil tegal se vices program. You can locate
these nonprofit groups at the Cahfomla Legel Services Web site (www lawheipcailfornia org). the California Courts Onllre Selt-Help Genter
{www courtinfo.ca gov/sefielp), or by contacling your local coun or county bar assaclation. NOTE: The court has a Slatutory llen for waived fees and
cosls on any setlement or arbliration award of $10,000 or more In 8 civil case. The cour!'s lien must be pald before the court wilk dismiss ihe case.
JAVISOI Lo han demandsdo  $Ina responde dentro d¢ 30 digs, fa corte pugdy dacidir en su conira sin escuchar su version, Lea fa informactén a

Tiane 10 DIAS DE CALENDARIC después de que fo enireguen esta citacién y papelss legales para presantar urd respuesta por escrito en esta
corte y hacer que se enlreque una copra &f demandante Lina cara o una flamada lelefénlaa no fo protegen. Su respuasia por asealp llene que esler
en formato legal correclo 51 desea que procesan su ¢aso en fa coe Es posibla qua haya un formulario quo usled L uada usar para SU fespuesta
Puade ancontrar astos formulanos go la corte y mas informacion en el Centro de Ayuda de las Cortes de California (www.sucorle ¢a gov) enle
bibholeca de leyes de su condado o en la corla que le quede mds cerca S o puade pagar ia cuols de presentacidn, plda al secrelario de la cors
que le dé un formuleno de exentidn de pago de cuclas 5 ne prasenta su respueata a ttempo, pueds perder ¢l casn por incumplimiento y 18 corle le

Hay otros requisliop [egales Es recomendsabia que flame a un ebogado inmediatamente, Si no conoce 8 un abogado, puads amar & un serviclo dg
remisién a abugndos{ Si no puede pagar a un abogado, es posible que cumpla con los requisitos para oblener servcios legales gralultos de un
programa de servicios Isgalas sin fines de lucro. Puede enconirar ¢5tos grupes sin fings de lucro en el sitio web de Calfornia Legai Services,
gov} o peméndose an contacta con Is corte o &}
colaglo de sbopadosliveales AVISO Poriey, ia corte tiene darecho a reclamar las cuoles y los coalog exentos por impener un gravamen sobre
cualquler recuperacidn de $10,000 6 mas de valor recihida medianle un acuerdo o una congesidn de arbitraye en ur caso de derecho civil, Tiene que

The name and address of the court is . .
(Ef nombre y direccitn de la corte es)  Superior Court of San Francisco

400 McAllister St.
San Francisco, CA 94102
The name, eddress, and telephone number of plaintiffs attorney, or plainbff without an a

CASE MUMBER'

tomey, 1s:

TR 16-55 71

il FOF

{Et nombre, la diraceion y ef nimero do teléfono def abogado de/ demandanits, o dol demandanis gue nu tiene abogado, es})'

Todd M. Fricdman, 324 S. Beverly Dr., #725, Beverly Hills, CA 90212, 877-206-4741
DATE Clerk, by , Deputy
oAt MAY 252018 CIERKOFTHECOURT  fex v ARLENE RAMOS b

{For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons fform POS-01 o)
{Para prueba de entrega do esla citalibn use ef formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-018)).

NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served
{sEAL) ) 1

as an individua) defendant,

3. [] onbehalf of {spacty)

under [ CCP 416 10 {(comoration)
[T CGP 416 20 (defuncl corporation)

™7 other (specify),

4. [[_] by personal delivery on {date}

2 [ asthe person sued under the fictitious name of (spacify)

CCP 416 60 (mino

r)

[[T] CCP 416.70 (conservates)

] COP 416 40 (association or partnership) [ CCP 416,90 (authorized person)

Pageiofi

Fort Adopta b far Mandatory Uso SUMMONS

Judiciol Counn) of Caldomia
SUM 100 {Rev July 1, 2009}

Codo ol Civil Provodu §§ $12.20, 465

Wit Counalo op pov

Arngrican LegaiNet, Inc,
www. Fomstoriotow tem

=z

s e

=PRT
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CM-010
Hﬁf{g}&l‘éﬁho‘l! ]:Pﬁ% T;M%:l?%‘l’ga?gsélﬁv Nagl_;.s 55&!6 Bar rumbet, ony acdress) FQR COURY USE ONLY
Law Offices of Todd M, Friedman
324 S Beverly D; L N5 E
Beverly Hills, CA 90212
recerronene  §77-206-4741 saxno 866-633-0228 Superior Cout of Califomiz
ararney For vemsy P laintiff, Laurie Munning ESinty of yan Francisca
SUPERIOR COURT OF QALIFORNIA, GOUNTY OF San Francisco )
. staeeT aooREss 400 McAllister St. MAY 25 20t
MAILING ADORESS
arvanozecooe San Francisco, 94102 CLERK OF THE COURT
BRANCH NAME BY: M“M_Q_S____
CASE NAME: Daputy Clerk
Laurie Munning, et al v. The Gap, Inc,, ¢t al
CIVIL CASE GOVER SHEET Complex Case Deslgnation GASE NULEER
m.::g:j;?d ] t{';gz:‘ 3 counter [ voinder _GGQ_"_]..ﬂ_B;S.Z.Z_L.«" G
demanded demanded is Filed with first appaarance by defendant Jubse
axceads $25,000) $25,000 or less) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3.402} DEPT'
Ttems 1B balow must be complaled (see inslructions on page 2}
1 Check one box below for the case type that best describes this case.
Auto Tord Contract Provistonally Comptex Civil Litigation
Auto (22) ’ [:} Breach of contractwarranty {06)  (Cal. Rufes of Couit, rules 3.400-3.403)
Uninsured mjotorlst {46} D Rule 3,740 collectlons (08) [:] Anlitrusi/Trace regulation (03)
Other PUPD/WD (Heraonal InjuryiProperty D Qther callections {09) l:l Constustion defact (19)
Damaga/Wrongful Death) Tort (L) tnsurance coverage (1B) () Mase tort 4o
Asbestcs (0F) 1 Other contract (37) [ securites aigation (28)
Pradust llabillty (24} Rezl Proparty D Environmenini/Toxlc tort {30}
Madical malpractice {45) (3 eminent domainfiaverse [ nsurance coserage claims arising from the
("] owner PUPDAWD (23) condemnation {14} above llsled provistenally complex cese
Non-PUPDIWD (Ofher} Tort (T weongtul evistion (33) types (41)
Businass foftfunfalr businass practca (07} [:] Othar real property (28) Enforcement of Judgmeant
:] Civll rights (ta) Untawful Dotalner |:] Enforcement of judgment (20)
] pefemation [13) D Commargial (31} Miscelianeous Clv | Complalnt
:] Fraud (18} D Residentlal {32) D RICO (27)
:] Intellectuat groperty {19} [:! Drugs (38) E_j Othar complaint {nat speciliad above) {42)
(| professional neghigence (25} Judiclal Review Miscellancous Civ | Petition
Other non-PYFDIWD tert (35) E Asset forfefura (08 £ Partnarship and corporate goveraance (21)
{Ezmﬁloymen! Petition re- arbiration award (11 ™ ynar petilior (ot specifiad above) (43)
Wronghul tefmination (38) (T3 wnt of mandate (02}
] other empidyment (15) [ 1 other judigial review (39)
2, This case 5 LeJisnot  complex uader rule 3.400 of the California Rules of Court If the case is complex, mark the

factors requinng|excaptional judictal management'

a E:J Large niimber of separately represented parties d. E:] Large number of witnesses

b. [ Extensibe motion praciice ralsing difficult or navel e, [ coordination with related actions penging in one or more counts
1ssues that will be ime-consuming to resoive i ofher counties, states, or cov nies, brin a federal court

e.[ ] Substadtial amount of documentary evidence t. [ substanual postudgment judelal sypervision

Remeches sought (check all thal apply} a E;fj monetary b nonmonetary, declaratog d'r‘m]un

o .
f ve rel c Dpunlllve
b5 of action (speciy): 11 7

This case s L_lisnot aciass action sult .

Number of caus
If there are any known related cases, file and serve a notice of related case (You lpdf use forpf CM 015.)

Date May 24, 2016
Todd M Friedman b
] ~ [TYPE OR PRINE NAME) yd (SIGNATURE OF PARTY OR ATTORNEY FOR PARTY}
; NOTICE
« Plaintiff must fita this cover sheet with the first paper filed in the action or proceeding (except small claims cases or cases fled
under the Probale Code, Family Code, or Wellare and Institutions Code) (Cal. Rules of Court, rule 3 220 ) Fallure to file may result
in sanglions
» File this cover sheet In addition lo any cover sheet required by locat coirt rule
« If this case Is colnplex under rule 3 400 et seq. of the Cafifomiz Rulas of Courl, you must serve & copy of this cover sheet on all
ather parties o the actlon or proceeding.
e Unless this is a bollections case under rule 3 740 or a complex case, this cover sheel will be used for statistical purposes onl& cotd

Fom Adoplad fe¢ Mandalo Cal Rulasal Sourd, rulea 2,30, 3220, 3.400-3 403, 3 740
oﬁdndalpcou:;s of CETrlnrr;n';W CIV' L CASE COVER SH EET £l Steadends o Judiclal Admnastralon sid. 3 10
CJ4 010 [Rov. July 1,2007] sy courtinie ¢a gov

] Arnancan LeguiMsd, [ne,
www, Form iWondtow com!

Ot n W




LAW OFFICES OF TODD M. FRIEDMAN, P.C.

324 SOUTH BEVERLY DRIVE 4725

BEVERLY HiLLs. CA 90212

[y

|

‘s trrsrm—————

—— e et s b pk e
e S = AW VL R " T SN o B < RO, S AR U SR U T N0

—
o

19
20 {l
21
22
23

"
25
26
27
28

Case 3:16-cv-03804-TEH Document 1-1 Filed 07/07/16 Page 4 of 54

; COPY

Law Offices of Todd M. Friedman, P.C. l}%E

Todd M. Friedman, Esq. (SBN 216752) ; A
tfriedman@toddflaw.com "G ?"‘t" ey

324 South Beverly Drive #7235 MAY 25 2010
Beverly Hills, CA 90212

Tel; 877-206-4741 CLEBK OF THE COURT
Fax: 866-633-0228 BY: o ABLENE AAMOS
Attorney for Plaintiff Depnty Clark

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
! FOR THE COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

UNLIMITED JURISDICTION
LAURIE MUNNING, individually and on behalf of
all others similarly situated, Case No.: CGC - 1 6 _5 5 22 tl 5
: Plaintiff, CLASS ACTION
o, COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES,
INJUNCTIVE & DECLARATORY
THE GAP, INC ; GAP (APPAREL) LLC; GAP RELIEF FOR VIOLATIONS OF
INTERNATIONAL SALES, INC,; BANANA CONSUMER FRAUD STATUTES
REPUBLIC LLC; and BANANA REPUBLIC AND COMMON LAW
(APPA}]{EL) LLC,
] JURY TRIAL DEMAND
: Defendants.
(Amount to Exceed $25,000)

Plaintiff Lauric Munning, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,

through t}er undersigned attorneys, files this class action Complaint againg! Defendants and

alleges a?’ follows:

NATURE OF THE ACTION

I, Plaintiff brings this nationwide class action against Defendznts alleging violations
of federal pricing regulations and the consumer protection laws and comm»n law of numerous

states, !
i

2, Specifically, itis alleged that Defendants engaged in a systematic scheme of false
and misleading advertising, marketing, and sales practices with respect to the sale of apparel and
other perlsona! items via their online Gap Factory and Banana Republic Factory store websites.

This schime, which is set forth in more detail herein, may be summarized as follows,

b

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 1 OF 36

JUN 07 2016
oIS

XVd A4




TR T LT,

T

bk

LAW OFFICES OF TODD M. FRIEDMAN, P.C.

324 SOUTH BEVERLY DRIVE #7285

BEVERLY HiLLs, CA 90212

Case 3:16-cv-03804-TEH Document 1-1 Filed 07/07/16 Page 5 of 54

l " 3 First, Defendants had, and continue to have, a policy of listing an arbitrary base
2 | price for every item oftered for sale on their websites, which purports to be each item’s

3 | “originalT or “regular,” non-discounted price. This practice is false and misleading because

4 fl most, if niot all, items are never sold or offered for sale at the listed “originzl,” non-discounted
5 || prices, and no items are ever consistently sold or offered for sale at their ncn-discounted prices.
6 |I Rather, the items on Defendants’ websites are regularly sold at prices that are Jower than the

7 I purported non-discounted prices.

8 4, Second, Defendants perpetually advertise the items for sale on their websites at
9 || purported “discount” or “sale” prices, which Defendants represent to be reduced or discounted
10 |} by a specified percentage off the items’ “original” prices. For example, Defendants will offer a

11 Jt dress forjsale at a “discount” price of $44.98, which they advertise as “50%; off” the dress’s

12 purportcgli “original” price of $89.99. See, e.g., Exhibit A, This practice is false and misieading
13 |} because the advertised discount percentage and “sale” price do not represent an actual discount,
14 {] as the ite’fns were never sold or offered for sale at their listed “original” prizes.

15 5, Because the vast majority — if not all - of the items on Defendants’ websites are
16 || never oftered for sale at their listed “original,” non-discounted prices, but 1ather are perpetually
17 " offered for sale at purported “discount” or “‘sale” prices, the reduced prices advertised by

18 || Defendants are not actually discounts at all, but rather the everyday, reguler prices of the items,
19 6 Federal regufations prohibit the advertising of false, “phantom” price reductions
20 || and discounts off inflated, fictitious “regular” prices that never actually ex'sted. See 16 C.F.R. §
21 || 233.1. '

22 7 Moreover, the consumer protection laws and common law of every state,

23 inciudiné California and New Jersey, prohibit deceptive advertising, marks:ting, and sales

24 | practicesj, including advertising and selling items at purported discounts and offering price

25 |f advantages that do not exist.

26 8l By advertising these purported discounts, which were never actually provided to
27 || customets, and by selling items based on these non-existent discounts, Defendants have violated
28

|
numerojs state consumer protection laws as well as the common law and tederal regulations, as
P
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set forth herein,

9, Plaintiff brings this lawsuit against Defendants to stop this unlawful practice, to
recover for the proposed classes of customers of the online Gap Factory and Banana Republic
Factory stpre websites the overcharges that they paid, and to obtain for customers the actual
discounts ,they were entitled to receive but did not due to Defendants’ deceptive practices.
PARTIES
10.  Plaintiff Laurie Munning is an individual and a resident and citizen of New
Jersey. During the class period, Plaintiff purchased goods from Defendants’ online Gap Factory
and Banaha Republic Factory store websites and suffered an ascertainable loss and monetary
damages as a result of Defendants’ unlawful conduct alleged herein.

11.  Defendant The Gap, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and existing under the
laws of tl*‘e State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 2 Folsom Street, 13% Floor,
San Frangisco, California 24103, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and California.

12, Defendant Gap (Apparel) LLC is a for-profit limited lability company formed
and existjng under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of business at 2
Folsom Street, 13" Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, and thus is a citizen of California,
18.  Defendant Gap International Sales, Inc. is a for-profit corporation formed and
existing ynder the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 2 Folsom
Street, 13™ Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and

California.
14.  Defendant Banana Republic LLC is a for-profit limited liability company formed

H
and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with its principal place of business at 2

]
Folsom $treet, 13" Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, and thus is a citizen of Delaware and

Californja.
5.  Defendant Banana Republic (Apparel) LLC is a for-profit limited liability
company formed and existing under the laws of the State of California with its principal place of

businersj at 2 Folsom Street, 13% Floor, San Francisco, California 94105, and thus is a citizen of

Califo .ia.

]
1
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16,i Upon information and belief, all Defendants have a parent-subsiaimy relationship,

in that Deigendants Gap {Apparel) LLC, Gap International Sales, Inc., Banana Republic LLC, and

Banana Rgpublic (Apparel) LLC are each wholly-owned subsidiaries of Defendant The Gap, Inc.

period.

17 At all times during the relevant class period, Defendants together owned and

operated, and continue to own and operate, approximately 889 Gap and Gap Factory retail stores,

” and appro%(imately 540 Banana Republic and Banana Republic Factory reta | stores, throughout

the United States.

18.  Defendants also own and operate the online Gap, Gap Factory, Banana Republic,

LH and Banana Republic Factory store retail websites, which advertise, market, and sell retail

products in every state in the United States, and have done so throughout the relevant class

19.  The Gap Factory and Banana Republic Factory store retail websites are, in effect,

one single website, located at http://www.bananarepublicfactory.gapfactory.com, Consumers are
£ aup: WWW.odananarcpubiiclaciory. gapractory

able - and in fact arc encouraged — to purchase items from both websites via a single

transactigns. In fact, Defendants advertise at the top of their websites: “Stop both brands.

Check out once.”

20,  Defendants jointly operate the online Gap Factory and Banzna Republic Factory

store websites out of their headquarters in California, which operation entails, inter alia, the

creation and implementation of the advertising, marketing, and sales policies described herein,

2. Defendants created the policies and procedures described hzrein and, at all times

includinT the sale of items.
|

during t}fc relevant class period, participated in, endorsed, implemented, and performed the

conduct f'aueged herein,

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has irn personam jurisdiction over the Defendanis because, inter alia,

Defendants: (a) are headquartered in the State of Califomnia; (b) transacted business in this state;

(c) maintained continuous and systematic contacts in this state prior to and during the class

period;

d (d) purposefully availed themselves of the benefits of doing business in this state.

CLASS ATCTION COMPLAINT PAGE4 OF 36
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H
i

Accordingly, the Defendants maintain minimum contacts with this state which are mare than

sufficient to subject them to service of process and to comply with due process of law.

23‘. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action by virtue of the
fact that ﬂlliS is a civil action where in the matter in controversy, exclusive of interest and costs,
exceeds ﬁPe jurisdictional minimum of the Court, The actions and omissions complained of took
place in t\%e State of California, County of San Francisco,

24, Venueis proper in the County of S8an Francisco because Defendants were within
the relevant class period, and continue to be, citizens of this County, in that the principal place of
business *or each Defendant is located in this County. Moreover, Defendants regularly
transactec?' and continue to transact business in this County, in that Defendaats operate their
websites ?rom this County and sell items on their websites from this County,

24, Moreover, the “Terms of Use” set forth on Defendants’ Gap Factory and Banana
RepubliciFactory online websites, which purport to give rise to a binding agreement between
Defendants and users of the sites, which include Plaintiff and the nationwice class members,
purport tg require that any claims brought against Defendants regarding puzchases made through
Defendants’ websites be resolved by Courts of the State of California, Cownty of San Francisco.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

items in their Gap, Gap Factory, Banana Republic, and Banana Republic Factory retail stores, as

ZI; Defendants are in the for-profit business of selling apparel and other personal
well as v;a their online Gap, Gap Factory, Banana Republic, and Banana Republic Factory store
retail wet:bsites.

27.  This lawsuit concerns Defendants’ false and misleading advertising, marketing,
and sales| practices with respect to their illusory “discounting” of items sold on their online Gap
Factory gnd Banana Republic Factory store websites.

28.  Specifically, on both the Gap Factory and Banana Republic Factory store
websites] each item for offered for sale is, and was during the class period, assigned a base price,

which is listed on Defendants® websites and purports to be the “original” ot “regular” price of

that item

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 5 OF 36
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2p.  This “original” price is illusory, however, because most — if not all — of the items

on Deferdants’ Gap Factory and Banana Republic Factory websites are never sold, or even

offered for sale, at their listed “original” prices.

3p.  Rather, each of these items is and has always been offered for sale at a

“discoun?ed” price that is much lower than its listed “original” price.

3j1. For cach such item, Defendants advertise that the “discountzd” price represents a

certain p}rcentagc reduction off the “original” price.

3}2. Thus, Defendants represent to thelr customers that the base price is the “original”

or “regul}ar non-discounted price of the item offered for salc, and the “sale” price is a

discounted price,

$44.98,

38. By way of example, Defendants will offer a dress for sale a: a “discount” price of

d they will advertise ~ in red lettering — that this price is “50% off” the dress’s

purported “original” price of $89.99. See Exhibit A,

34.  The advertised price of the dress, which is set forth below iis picture and

descriptipn on Defendants’ websites, appear as follows:

$89:99 50% off
Now $44.98
See id.
35.  Upon information and belief, the dress was never sold or offered for sale at the

advertiseld “original” price, or was never consistently sold or offered for sale at this price.

35.  Because the dress was never sold or offered for sale at the advertised “original”

price, it is not actually discounted by 50%, and thus the 50% discount advertised by Defendants,

as well a the purported “sale” price, is false and misleading.

37.  Defendants follow this identical advertising and sales procedure for the vast

majority |- if not all - of the items offered for sale on their Gap Factory and Banana Republic

Factory store retail websites.

3B.  Indeed, the vast majority of the items offered for sale on Defendants’ websites are

never sold or offered for sale at their listed “original” prices, and the few items that are offered

CLASS A FI‘ION COMPLAINT PAGE 6 OF 36
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J
i
for sale at their “original” prices are so offered only for a very limited amount of time.

39.  Rather, nearly all of the items on Defendants’ websites are always advertised as
being “on Fale” and offered to the public at purported discounts, which Defendants typically

claim to be between 10% off and 50% off the “original” prices.
40,  Moreover, nearly all of the items on Defendants’ websites remain at identical or
substantially similar prices every day, and are always offered for sale to cus‘omers at the same or

subslantia}ly similar prices, which Defendants advertise to be the items’ “sale” or “discounted”
f
prices. :

41;‘. Because Defendants® purported sale prices for these items never end, but rather
continue In a daily basts and are available anytime a customer visits Defendants’ websites, they
are not ac;t
of the itcri1s.

42, Upon information and belief, Defendants never significanily increase the price of

ually discounted or sale prices at all, but rather constitute the eve yday, regular prices

any item from its advertised sale price. Over time, however, Defendants may reduce the prices
of certain items — for example, to clear out excess inventory — resulting in zn item being offered

for a lower price in a subsequent sale. The prices of such items are not raised back to the

original sale price, but remain at the reduced price (or eventually are reduced even further).
43,  This practice violates 16 C.F.R, § 233.1, which specifically prohibits the
advertising of false, “phantom” price reductions and discounts off inflated, fictitious “regular”
prices that never actually existed. See id., stating:
§ 233.1 Former price comparisons,
(a) One of the most commonly used forms of bargain advertising is to offer a
reduction from the advertiser’s own former price for an article¢. If the former
Qrice is the actual, bona fide price at which the article was offered to the
l?ublic on a regular basis for a reasonably substantial period of time, it
;irovides a legitimate basis for the advertising of a price comparison. Where
t:he former price is genuine, the bargain being advertised is a true one, If, on

the other hand, the former price being advertised is not bona fide but

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE70F 36
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the purpose of cnabling the subsequent offer of a lar e reduction — the

“bargain” heing advertised is a false one; the purchaser is not receiving the

unusual value he expects. In such a case, the “reduced” price is _in realify,

probably just the seller’s regular price.

(d)) A former price is not necessarily fictitious merely because no sales at the
arlvertised price were made. The advertiser should be especially careful,
gbwever, in such a case, that the price is one at which the product was openly

nd actively offered for sale, for a reasonably substantial period of time, in

#e recent, regular course of his business, honestly and in good faith — and, of
burse, not for the purpose of establishing a fictitious higher price on which a

o)

-

|

eceptive comparison might be based. And the advertiser should

s¢trupulousty avoid any implication that a former price is 2 selling, not an
asking price (for example, by use of such language as, “Formerly sold at

=%

-]

$| ™), unless substantial sales at that price were actually made.
¥ * ¥
(d) Other illustrations of fictitious price comparisons could be given. An

aﬂvcrtiser might use a price at which he never offered the article at all; he

might feature a price which was not used in the regular course of business, or

which was not used in the recent past but at some remote period in the past,
without making disclosure of that fact; he might use a price that was not
oPen!y offered to the public, or that was not maintained for a reasonable
léngth of time, but was immediately reduced.

¢) If the former price is set forth in the advertisement, whether accompanied
oy not by descriptive terminology such as “Regularly,” “Usually,”
“Formerly,” etc., the advertiser should make certain that the former price is

o~

ot a fictitions ene. If the former price, or the amount or percentage of

1=

reduction, is not stated in the advertisement, as when the ad merely states,

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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E

“Sale,” the advertiser must take care that the amount of reduction is not so
inisignificant as to be meaningless. It shounild be sufficiently large that the
cq!nsumer, if he knew what it was, would believe that a genuine bargain or
s;ving was being offered. An advertiser who claims that an item has been
“Reduced to $9.99,” when the former price was $10, is misleadiag the
consumer, who will understand the claim to mean that a much greater, and

44.  Upon information and belief, the purported “original” prices of the items on

nIt merely nominal, reduction was being offered.
Defendai;ts’ websites are “not bona fide but fictitious” under 16 C.F.R. § 233.1 because the
iterns were never sold or offered for sale at those prices.

4%. Consequently, the purported “reduced” prices are “in reality, .., [Defendants’]
regular price[s]” and “the ‘bargain(s]’ being advertised” by Defendants are “false.” 16
C.F.R. § 233.1,

46.  What happened to Plaintiff Munning helps illustrate Defenclants’ unlawiul
practices described herein.

47 . On March 15, 2016, Plaintiff Munning purchased from the Gap Factory retai!
website 41 pair of “Factory multi-stripe swim trunks” (Item No. 8870110010002) for $16.99. The
swim trinks were advertised to be on sale at a *32% off” discount from the purported original
retail price of $24.99. See Exhibits A and B.

48.  The advertised price of the swim trunks, which was set forth below its picture and
description on Defendants® Gap Factory website, appeared as follows:
$24:99 32% oft
Now $16.99

ee id,

143

1

9. As part of the same transaction, Plaintiff Munning also purchased from the

—P

Banana Fepublic Factory retail website a “Factory Colorblock Ponte Sheath” dress (Item No,
182483(5010010) for $44.98 and a “Factory Dolman Pontielle Sweater” (I:em No,
1818810110002) for $45,98. The dress was advertised to be on sale at a “50% off discount

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE9 OF 36
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|
from the purported otiginal retail price of $89.99, and the sweater was advertised to be on sale at
a “16% off” discount from the purported original retail price of $54.99. Secid.

S(l. The advertised price of the dress, which was set forth below its picture and

description on Defendants’ Banana Republic Factory website, appeared as follows:
. $89-99 50% off
' Now $44.98

Sée id.

5],  The advertised price of the sweater, which was set forth below its picture and
description on Defendants’ Banana Republic Factory website, appeared as follows:

$54-99 16% off
Now $45.98

Ske id.

52.  Plaintiff Munning purchased the three items from Defendants’ websites via a
single tra{nsactioﬂ on March 15, 2016 and paid a single payment to Defendants for the three items
that tota!%d $107.95. See Exhibit B.

sb.  Onthe following day, March 16, 2016, the prices of the swim trunks, dress, and
sweater remained unchanged.

54.  Indeed, the prices for the swim trunks, dress, and sweater remained unchanged for

n the entire week following Plaintiff’s purchase, as did the advertisements on Defendants’ websites

related thereto. See Exhibit A.

55.  Accordingly, during the week following Plaintiff’s purchass of the swim trunks
for “32% off,” the dress for “50% off,” and the sweater for “16% off,” nore of the three items
was ever sold at its listed non-discounted, “original” price. Indeed, the prices of the three items
never exgeeded the purported “discounted” or “sale” price that Plaintiff paid.
§i6. Moreover, over on¢ month later, the price of the swim trunks that Plaintiff
purchaséd had only slightly increased (by one dollar} to $17.99, which Defendants advertised to
be “28% off” the non-discounted, “original” price of $24.99. The price and purported discount

il
of the dress did not change — it was still offered for sale at a price of $44.98, which Defendants

" CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PaGE 10 OF 36
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advertise:ci to be “50% off™ the non-discounted, “original” price of $89.99,
59, Upon information and belief, the three items purchased by Plaintiff were never
[ sold or oi‘fered for sale at the non-discounted, base prices listed on Defendants® websites, or were
never consistently sold or offered for sell at their advertised base prices. Rather, the items were

always sold and offered for sale at a price at or near the purported “sale” price that Plaintiff paid.

Sh. As such, the items that Plaintiff purchased were not actually on sale or discounted
at all wheén Plaintiff purchased them, as represented by Defendants, and they certainly were not

discountéd to the extent claimed by Defendants.

5|9, Moreover, the prices that Plaintiff paid for the items were not sale or discounted

prices atrll, as represented by Defendants, but rather were the everyday, regular prices for the

items,

| 6b.  Defendants’ misrepresentations about the purported discounted prices of the items

were cal¢ulated and intended to, and did in fact, induce Plaintiff’s purchase thereof.

61 What happened to Plaintiff Munning was not an accident o1 an isolated incident,
" 62, Rather, it was part of a uniform policy in which Defendants engaged ina
systematic scheme of false and misleading advertising, marketing, and sales practices with the
purpose of persuading customers to purchase iters from Defendants’ online Gap Factory and
Banana Republic Factory store websites.
63.  Defendants’ specific unlawfu] practices include:
a. Setting and advertising an arbitrary base price for every item on their

websites, which price purports to be the item’s “originar” or “regular” price

—eprere——r
r——

despite the fact that the items are never sold or offered for sale at this price;

b. Advertising and purporting to offer items for sale at a discount off their
“original” prices, when the “discounted” sale prices do not actually represent
the advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at the

“original” prices; and

¢. Representing that items are on sale and offered at discounted prices when in

fact the items are being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE |1 OF 36
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6 I. These unlawful practices go well beyond the three items that Plaintiff purchased,
and are applied by Defendants to the vast majority — if not all - of the items on Defendants’
wcbsites.]

65.  As described hercin, the “sale” prices advertised by Defendants are not actually
discounted prices at all, but rather are the everyday, regular prices of the items.

66.  Indeed, Defendants’ purported “discounts” advertised on their websites and
described herein did not exist. Rather, Defendants always sold their items at, or very close to,
the “discounted” prices. As such, Defendants’ allegedly reduced, “sale” prices were and are, in
fact, Def ‘ndants’ regular prices.

67.  These deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices ‘were kept secret, ar;d
were affirmatively and fraudulent concealed from customers by Defendants throughout the class
period. As a result, Plaintiff and her fellow Gap Factory and Banana Republic Factory online
store customers were unaware of Defendants’ unlawful conduct alleged herein and did not know
they were actually paying the everyday, regular prices for Defendants’ products, rather than the
advertised, purported discount prices

68.  Plaintiff and the class members did not discover, nor could they have discovered
through reasonable diligence, that Defendants were violating the law until shortly before this
litigation:was initially commenced, because Defendants used methods 1o avoid detection and to
conceal ti1€ir violations of the law,

69.  Defendants did not tel} or otherwise inform Plaintiff or the ¢lass members that
they were engaged in the deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices alleged herein.
By their very nature, Defendants’ unlawful practices were self-concealing.

70.  In sum, Defendants induced Plaintiff and the class members to purchase items
from Defendants’ online websites, for Defendants’ profit, with the promise of discounts that

never existed. As a result of this unlawful, deceptive conduct, Plaintiff and the class members

" have suﬂ%ered damages set forth herein.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

]
1
71.  Class Definition: Plaintiff brings this action as a class acticn pursuant to

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT ‘ PAGE 1207 36
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California Code of Civil Procedure Section 382, seeking damages and injunctive relief under

state consumer protection statutes and common law on behalf of herself and all members of the

following two proposed classes:

Alt United States citizens who purchased any discounted item from Defendants’
online Gap Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the present.

and

AE!! United States citizens who purchased any discounted item frrom Defendants’

oiﬂine Banana Republic Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the

pL'esent.

i

72.  Sub-Class Definition: Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to

California Code of Civil Procedure Section 382, seeking damages and injunctive relief under
state consumer protection statutes and common law on behalf of herself and all members of the
I following two proposed Sub-classes: 7
All New Jersey citizens who purchased any discounted ifem from Defendants’
online Gap Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the present.
and

Il New Jersey citizens who purchased any discounted item from Defendants’
online Banana Republic Factory store website between May 24, 2010 and the

present.

78.  The scope of the class definitions may be refined afier discovery of Defendants’

and/or thiird party records.

74,  Each of the classes for whose benefit this action is brought is so numerous that

|

joinder olf all members is impracticable.

7!5. The exact number and identities of the persons who fit within each proposed class
are contfjined in Defendants’ records and can be easily ascertained from those records.

76, The proposed classes and subclasses are cach composed of at least 10,000

persons.

77.  Common questions of law and fact exist as to each class member.

]
CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 13 OF 36
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78.

All claims in this action arise exclusively from uniform policies and procedures of

Defendants as outlined herein.

79

No violations alleged in this Complaint are a result of an}; individualized oral

communlications or individualized interaction of any kind between class members and

Defendants or anyone else.

80.

There are common questions of law and fact affecting the rights of the class

members, including, inter alia, the following:

a.

E
I
|

whether the uniform advertising, marketing, and sales practices alleged herein
exist;

whether Defendants ever sold items or offered items for sale at their listed base
prices;

whether Defendants’ “sale” prices actually reflected the adyertised savings;
whether Defendants deceptively advertised everyday, regular prices of their
items as “discount” or “sale” prices;

the length of time Defendants engaged in the practices alleged herein;

whether the alleged practices violated state consumer protection laws;

whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of contract;

whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of the implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing,;

whether the alleged practices constituted a breach of an express warranty;
whether Defendants were unjustly enriched by the alleged practices;

the nature and extent of the injury to the classes and the meisure of class-wide
damages; and

whether each class is entitled to injunctive relief in the form of an order directing
Defendant to send a court-approved notice to all class members, advising of the
conduct alleged herein, as well as an order enjoining the conduct alleged herein
and establishing a court-administered program to provide refunds of the

overcharges to all such class members.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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81.]  Plaintiff is a member of the classes she seeks to represent.
82.-  The claims of Plaintiff are not only typical of all class members, they are

identical.

83, All claims of Plaintiff and the classes arise from the same course of conduct,
policy and procedures as outlined herein.

84.  All claims of Plaintiff and the classes are based on the exact same legal theories,

85.  Plaintiff seeks the same relief for herself as for every other class member.

86!  Plaintiff has no interest antagonistic to or in conflict with the classes.

87.  Plaintiff will thoroughly and adequately protect the interests of the classes, having
retained ghalified and competent legal counsel to represent herself and the classes.

88,  Defendant has acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the
classes, thereby making appropriate injunctive and declaratory relief for cach class as a whole.

89.  The prosecution of separate actions by individual class members would create a
risk of indonsistent or varying adjudications with respect to individual members of each class,
which would confront Defendant with incompatible standards of conduct.

90.  Adjudications with respect to individual members of the classes would as a
practical matter be dispositive of the interests of other members not parties fo the adjudications
and would substantially impair or impede their ability to protect their interests.

9f. A class action is superior to other available methods for the Jair and efficient
adjudication of the controversy since, infer alia, the damages suffered by each class member
were not great enough to enable them to maintain separate suits against Delendants and in most,
if not all, instances were less than $5,000 per person,

92.  Common questions will predominate, and there will be no unusual manageability
issues,

9t. Without the proposed class action, Defendants will likely retain the benefit of

their wrongdoing and will continue the complained-of practices, which will result in further

damages to Plaintiff and class membets.

it
1
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§ COUNT
;VIOLATION OF STATE CONSUMER PROTECTION STATUTES
3 {On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes)

94,  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if set forth fully herein.

95.  The state consumer protection statutes and deceptive trade practices acts were
enacted by the various states following the passage of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC
Act™), which prohibits deceptive acts and practices in the sale of products to consumers. The
state laws in this area are modeled on the FTC Act and are therefore very siinilar in content and
effect.

96; Defendants’ advertising, marketing, and sales practices, as s¢t out maore fully
above, were unfair and deceptive, and violated the consumer protection stat xtes and deceptive
trade pracLices acts of the various states, in that they:

a. Set and advertised an arbitrary base price for numerous items on their websites,

which price was represented to be the item’s “original” or “regular” price despite the fact

that such items were never sold or offered for sale at that price;

b. Continuously advertised and offered items for sale at a disccunt off their

purported base prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the

advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at their base prices;

¢ Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in fact

t}Je items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices; and

d', Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items on their websites

r Ithcr than the advertised sale or discounted price.

97,  Defendants’ deceptive representations of discounted sale prices impacted the
consume} transactions between Defendants and Plaintiff and the class members, in that the
deceptive representations: (a} deceived Plaintiffs and the class members into believing that they

were receiving the advertised discounts when they purchased items from Defendants’ websites;

and (b) caused Plaintiff and the class members to purchase items from Defendants’ websites with

Crass AFTION COMPLAINT PAGE 16 QF 36
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the reasonable understanding that they would be receiving the advertised discounts,

9g.

Plaintiff and every class member suffered an actual injury and monetary damages

because they did not receive the advertised discounts on their purchases.

99.

Defendants’ deceptive advertising, marketing, and sales practices described herein

violated the following consumer protection statutes and deceptive trade practices acts, as well as

their related administrative regulations:

a.

Alabama Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ala. Code §§ 8-19-1, 2/ seq.;

Alaska Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, Alaska Stat. §§
45.50.471, et seq.;

Arizona Consumer Fraud Act, A.R.S. §§ 44-1522, ef seq ;

Arkansas Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ark. Code Ann. §§ 4-88-101, ef seq ;
California Consumers Legal Remedy Act, Cal. Civ. Code §§ 1750, ef seq., California
Unfair Competition Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof Code §§ 17200, ef s2q., and California
False Advertising Law, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17500, ef seqy.;

Colorado Consumer Protection Act, Col. Rev. Stat. §§ 6-1-101, ef seq.;

Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, Conn. Gen. Stat, §§ 42-110a, ef seq.;
Delaware Consumer Fraud Act, 6 Del. Code Ann, Tit. 6, §§ 2511, et seq.;

Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act, Fla. Stat, §§ 501.201, ef seq.,
Florida Misleading Advertising Statute, Fla. Stat. § 817.41, et seq ;

Georgia Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Ga. Code Ann. §§ 10-1-370, ef seq.,
Fair Business Practices Act, Ga. Code Ann. §§ 10-1-390, ef seq., and False
Advertising Statute, Ga. Code Ann. §§ 10-1-420, ef seq.;

Hawaii Federal Trade Commission Act, Haw Rev, Stat. §§ 480, et seq. and Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practice Act, Hawaii Rev. Stat, §§ 481A, ef seq.;

Idaho Consumer Protection Act, Idaho Code §§ 48-601, ef seq..

. Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Practices Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, ef seq.;

Indiana Deceptive Consumer Sales Act, Ind. Code §§ 24-5-0.3-1, ei seq.;
Private Right of Action for Consumer Frauds Act, lowa Code §§ 714H, ef seq. and

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 17 OF 36
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Iowa Consumer Fraud Act, Jowa Code §§ 714.16 ef seq.;

p Kansas Consumer Protection Act, Kan. Stat. Ann, §§ 50-623, er seq.;

q. Kentucky Consumer Protection Act, K.R.S. §§ 367.110, es seq..

r. Louisiana Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, La. Rev. Stat, Ann.
§ 51:140L;

s. Maine Unfair Trade Practices Act, S M.R.S.A, §§ 205-A-214, et seq., Uniform

| Deceptive Trade Pratices Act, 10 MR.S.A. §§ 1211, et seq.;

t.l Maryiand Consumer Protection Act, Md. Code Ann, Com. Law §§ 13-101, e/ seq.;

u; Massachusetts Regulation of Business Practice and Consumer 'rotection Act, Mass.
Gen. L. Ch, 93A, §§ 9, ef seq.;

v. Michigan Consumer Protection Act, M.C.L. §§ 445.901, er seq.;

w, Minnesota Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Minn, Stat. §§ 325 D. 44, ef seq.,

: Consumer Fraud Act, Minn, Stat. § 325 F, 69, False Statement in Advertisement

Statute, Minn. Stat. §325 F. 67, and Unlawful Trade Practices Act, Minn. Stat. § 325

| D.13;

x} Missouri Merchandising Practices Act, Mo. Rev, Stat. §§ 407-C10, ef seq.;

y. Montana Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, Mont. Code Ann. §§
30-14-101, et seq. and Statutory Deceit Statute, Mont. Code Arn. § 27-1-712;

z. Nebraska Consumer Protection Act, Neb. Rev, Stat, §§ 59-1601, ef seq. and Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Neb, Rev. Stat. §§ 87-301, et seq.;

an, Nevada Déceptivc Trade Statutes, Nev, Rev. Stat. §§598.0003, et seq., §§ 41.600, ef seq.;

bb. New Hampshire Regulation of Business Practices for Consumer Protection Act, N.H.

Rev. Stat. Ann. §§ 358-A:1, ef seq.;
¢, New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. §§ 56:8-1, ef seq.;

[+]

dd. New Mexico Unfair Trade Practices Act, N.M. Stat, §§ 57-12-1, et seq.;
b, New York General Business Law §§ 349 and 350;

o

ft. North Carolina Unfair and Deceptive Trade Practices Act, N.C. Gen, Stat. §§ 75-1.1,
f et seq.,

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 15 0F 36
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gg!i North Dakota Unfair Trade Practices Law, N.D. Cent, Code §§ 51-15-01, ef seq.;

hh‘. Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act, ORC §§ 1345.01, ef seq.;

ii. Oklahoma Consumer Protection Act, Okla. Stat. Tit, 15, §§ 751, ef seq. and

Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Okla. Stat. Tit. 78, § 51, ef seq ;

jj.: Oregon Unlawful Trade Practices Act, Or. Rev. Stal. §§ 646.60%, ef seq. and Food
E and Other Commodities Act, Or. Rev. Stat. §§ 616.005, ef seq.;

kk. Pennsylvania Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, 73 Pa. Stat. Ann.
| §§ 201-1, ef seq.;

ll. Rhode Island Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, R.I. Gen. Law §§

6-13.1-1, et seq.;

m!’n South Carolina Unfair Trade Practices Act, 8.C. Code Ann. §§ 39-5-10, et seq.;

nni. South Dakota Deceptive Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, S.D. Codified

: Laws §8§ 37-24-1, ef seq.;

00. Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Consumer Protection Act, Tex. Bus. & Com. Code
§§ 17.41, et seq.;

pp. Tennessee Consumer Protection Act, Tenn. Code Ann, §§ 47-18-101, ef seq.;

qq. Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act, Utah Code Ann . §§ 13-11-1, e/ seg and Truth in
Advertising Act, Utah Code Ann. §§ 13-11a-1, ef seq.;

. Vermont Consumer Fraud Act, 9 V.S.A. §§ 2451, el seq.;

ss. Virginia Consumer Protection Act, Va. Code §§ 59.1-196, ef seq.;

tt. Washington Consumer Protection Act, Wash, Rev. Code Ann. §§ 19.86.010, er seq.;

uu. West Virginia Consumer Credit and Protection Act, W.Va, Code §§ 46A-6-101, et
seq.;

vv, Wisconsin Deceptive Trade Practices Act, Wis. Stat. §§ 100.18(1), e? seq.;

ww.  Wyoming Consumer Protection Law, Wyo. Stat. §§ 40-12-101, ef seq.; and

xx, District of Columbia’s Consumer Protection Act, D.C. Code § 28-3901, ef seq.

100. At all relevant times hereto, including at all times during the transactions between

Defendaqﬁts and Plaintiff and the class members, Defendants” advertising, marketing, and sales
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practices were subject to these statutes.

101. Defendants’ violations of these statutes directly, foreseeably, and proximately
caused damages to Plaintiffs and the nationwide classes in amounts yet to be determined,
102.  Plaintiff and class members in each of the above states have been injured as a

result of Defendants’ unlawful advertising, marketing, and sales practices, in that they were

deceived and induced into paying full price for products that Defendants represented were on

sale or dis{lzountcd. These injuries are precisely the type that the above-cited laws were designed

to prevent.

103. Moreover, because Defendant’s conduct described herein is a violation of 16

CFR.§ ,33.1, as set forth above, such conduct constitutes a per se violation of the above-cited
laws, 7

10|,4. Plaintiff and the class members reasonably and justifiably expected Defendants to
comply v\);ith applicable law, but Defendants failed to do so.

145. In addition, Defendants have profited significantly from their illicit advertising,
marketiné, and sales practices identified hergin. Defendants’ profits derived from these practices
come at the expense and to the detriment of Plaintiff and the class members,

106.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violations, Flaintiff and the class
members have been injured and have suffered actual damages for which Defendants are liable, in
an amouiit to be established at trial.

107.  Accordingly, Plaintiff and the class members in each of the above jurisdictions
seek damages (including statutory damages where applicable), to be trebled or otherwise
increased as permitted by the respective jurisdiction’s applicable law, and costs of suit, including
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, to the extent permitted by the respective state laws,

COUNT 11
VIAQLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSUMERS LEGAL REMEDIES ACT,
!l CAL, CIV, CODE § 1750, ef seq.
{On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes)

108.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

" CLASS Arnor«l COMPLAINT PAGE 20 0F 36
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i
Complaiht as if set forth fully herein,

109.  Plaintiff brings this ¢laim individually and on behalf of all cther nationwide class
members who purchased items from Defendants’ website pursuant to the California Consumers
Legal Remedies Act, Cal. Civ. Code § 1750, ¢f seq. (the “CCLRA™), because the actions of
Defendalﬁts, and their conduct described herein, constitute transactions that have resulted in the
sale of goods to consumers.

110.  California law applies to the claims of Plaintiff and the nationwide classes
because Lefendants are citizens of California and performed the acts comglained of herein in
Califomi,:a, including advertising the fictitious price discounts and selling products based
thereupon. Moreover, the “Terms of Use” set forth on Defendants’ Gap Factory and Banana
Republic Factory online websites, which purport to give rise to a binding agreement between
Defendagzlts and users of the sites, which include Plaintiff and the nationwide class members,
purport tl apply California law to any claims brought against Defendants regarding purchases
made thrpugh Defendants’ websites.

111, Plaintiff and each class member are consumers as defined by California Civil
Code § 1761(d).

112.  The items offered for sale on Defendants’ websites are goods within the meaning
of California Civil Code § 1761(a). Defendants intended to, and did in fact, sell these items to
Plaintiff and the classes.

113. Defendants violated the CCLRA in at least the following respects:

a' in violation of § 1770(a)(5), Defendants represented that the: items on their

rebsites have characteristics which they do not have (i.e., that the items have an

=

-

‘original”’ price when they do not, and are being offered for sale at a discounted price

hen they are not);

b=}

b in violation of § 1770(a)(9), Defendants advertised the items on their websites

ith intent not to sell them as advertised (7 e., the items were advertised as being on sale

%

3

when Defendants intended to, and did in fact, sell them at their regular prices);

i
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¢.  inviolation of § 1770(a)(13), Defendants have made false and misleading
staJements of fact concerning the existence and amounts of price reductions (i.e., by
advertising discounts and offering sale prices that did not exist); and

d. in violation of § [770¢a)(16), Defendants represented that the items on their

wepsites have been supplied in accordance with previous representations (i.e., that they

were sold at a discounted price) when they were not.

Defendants;

3. Set and advertised an arbitrary base price for numerous items on their websites,

which price was represented to be the item’s “original” or “regular” -arice despite the fact
2 P 8 P

that such items were never sold or offered for sale at that price;

b. Continuously advertised and offered items for sale at a discount off their

purported base prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the

ad,bertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at their base prices;

the items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices; and

d. Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items un their websites
rather than the advertised sale or discounted price,

1 1!5. Defendants knew, or should have known, that their representations,

advertiset{'nents, and actions were false and misleading.

116, These acts and omissions constitute unfair, deceptive, and nisleading business

practices jn violation of California Civil Code § 1770(a).

mail, of the violations alleged hetein and demanded that Defendants remedy those violations

with respgct to herself and the classes.

118.  To date, Defendants have not remedied their practices complained of herein.

119.  Defendants’ conduct was malicious, fraudulent, and wanton in that Defendants

intentionally and knowingly provided misleading information to the public.

114. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated the CCLRA. Specifically,

< l Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in fact

117, On March 28, 2016, Plaintiff sent notice to Defendants in writing, by certified
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120.  Plaintiff and each nationwide class member were injured in fact and fost money

as a resultlof Defendants’ deceptive conduct,

121.  Plaintiff now seeks actual, punitive, and statutory damages pursuant to the

CCLRA for herself and the nationwide classes.
, COUNT I
\‘/IOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA UNFAIR COMPETITION LAW,
CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17200, et seq.
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes)
125. Plaintiff realieges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Comp!ain; as if set forth fully herein.
l2E. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the nationwide classes.

12 The California Unfair Competition Law, California Business & Professions

.
Code § 17{200, et seq. (the “CUCL"), prohibits acts of “unfair competition,” which is defined as
including any unlawful, unfair or fraudulent business act or practice ...."”

125. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have engaged in unfair competition and
unfair, unlawful, or fraudulent business practices in violation of the CUCL. Specifically,
Defendants:

a. Set and advertised an arbitrary base price for numerous items on their websites,

which price was represented to be the item’s “original” or “regular” price despite the fact

that such items were never sold or offered for sale at that price;

b. Continuously advertised and offered items for sale at a discount off their

purported base prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the

advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at their base prices;

<. Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in fact

thf items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices; and

d. Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items on their websites

rather than the advertised sale or discounted price.

146.  Defendants intentionally and purposefully concealed these actions from Plaintiff
3

3
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and the class members.

127.  Defendants’ conduct was unlawful in that it violates, withourt limitation, the
CCLRA, and California’s False Advertising Law, California Business & Professions Code §
17500, ef [seg. (the “CFAL™). Defendants’ conduct was unfair in that it offends established

public policy and/or is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous, and substantially injurious

to Plaintifif and the class members. The harm to Plaintiff and the class members arising from
Defendants’ conduct outweighs any legitimate benefit Defendants derived from the conduct.
Defendants’ conduct undermines and violates the stated spirit and policies underlying the
CCLRA dnd the CFAL as alleged herein. Defendants’ actions and practice ; constitute fraudulent
business practices in violation of the CUCL because, among other things, they are likely to
deceive r¢asonable consumers. Plaintiff and the class members justifiably 1clied on Defendants’
representations and omissions.

128. These acts and practices have deceived Plaintiff and the class members and are
likely to deceive persons targeted by such statements and omissions, In fai'ing to disclose their
unlawful sales and marketing practices, Defendants breached their duties to disclose these facts,
violated l. e CUCL, and caused injuries to Plaintiff and the class members. The omissions and
acts of concealment by Defendants pertained to information that was mater al to Plaintiff and the
class members, as it would have been to all reasonable consumers.

129, Due to the deceptive nature of Defendants’ actions, the injuries suffered by
Plaintiff and the class members were not reasonably avoidable.

130.  Plaintiff seeks to enjoin further unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent acts or
practices by Defendants, to obtain restitutionary disgorgement of all moniess and revenues
g';-,m?ratedI as a result of such practices, and all other relief allowed under the CUCL.

COUNTIV
VIOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA FALSE ADVERTISING LAW,
CAL. BUS. & PROF. CODE § 17500, et seq.

(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes)

131.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE24 OF 36
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Complaint

132,
133.

misleading

as if set forth fully herein.
Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of the nationwide classes.
By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have publicly disseminated untrue or

advertising and have intended not to sell the items on their websites as advertised, in

violation df the CFAL. Specifically, Defendants:

a.
whi
that
b.

Set and advertised an arbitrary base price for numerous items on their websites,
ch price was represented to be the item’s “original” or “regular” orice despite the fact
such items were never sold or offered for sale at that price;

Continuously advertised and offered items for sale at a discount off their

pufported base prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the

adVertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at thei: base prices;

c.
thd
d.

Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in fact
items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices; and

Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items on their websites

rafher than the advertised sale or discounted price.

134,

Defendants committed such violations of the CFAL with actual knowledge that

their advertising was untrue or misleading, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have

known that their advertising was untrue or misleading,

135,

Plaintiff and the class members reasonably relied on Defendants’ representations

and/or onﬁissions made in violation of the CFAL.

136

. Asa direct and proximate result of these violations, Plaintiff and the class

members suffered injury and fact and lost money.

117,

Plaintiff, individually and on behalf of the class members, sieks equitable relief in

the form pf an order requiring Defendants to refund Plaintiff and all class members all monies

they paid, for the items they purchased via Defendants’ websites, and injunctive relief in the form

of an order

prohibiting Defendants from engaging in the alleged misconduct and performing a

corrective advertising campaign,
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COUNTV
VIOLATION OF THE NEW JERSEY CONSUMER FRAUD ACT
N.J.S.A, 56:8-1, ef seq.
(On Behalf of the New Jersey Subclasses)

38.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complait as if fully set forth herein.

[

[39. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of all other New Jersey
subclass members who were customers of Defendants® online Gap Factory and Banana Republic
Factory store websites.

1«?0. The New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-1, ef seq. (the “NICFA™),
applies t | all sales made by Defendants to New Jersey consumers from Defendants® Gap Factory
and Banana Republic Factory store websites.

141. The NJCFA was enacted to protect consumers against sharp and unconscionable
commercjal practices by persons engaged in the sale of goods or services. See Marascio v.
Campandila, 689 A.2d 852, 857 (N.J. Ct. App. 1997).

142, The NJCFA is a remedial statute which the New Jersey Supreme Court has
repeatedly held must be construed liberally in favor of the consumer to accomplish its deterrent
and protective purposes. See Furst v. Einstein Moomjy, Inc., 860 A.2d 435, 441 (N.J. 2004)
{*The [NiICFA] is remedia! legislation that we construe liberally to accomglish its broad purpose
of safegulrding the public.”).

143. “The available legislative history demonstrates that the [NJCFA] was intended to
be one of the strongest consumer protection laws in the nation,” New Mea Const. Corp. v.
Harper, 497 A.2d 534, 543 (NLJ. Ct. App. 1985).

144. For this reason, the “history of the [NJCFA] is one of constant expansion of

consumet protection.” Kavky v. Herbalife Int'l of Am., 820 A.2d 677, 681-82 (N.J. Ct. App.
2003).
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1 14S. The NJCFA was intended to protect consumers “by eliminating sharp practices

2 Il and dealings in the marketing of merchandise and real estate.”” Lemelledo v. Beneficial Mgmt.

3 1l Corp., 696/ A.2d 546, 550 (N.J. 1997).

4 148. Specifically, N.J.S.A. 56:8-2 prohibits “unlawful practices, ...” which are defined

5 |l as: ;

6 The act, use or employment of any uncenscionable commercial practice,

7 deception, fraud, false pretense, misrepresentation, or the knowing,

8 concealment, suppression, or omission of any material fact with intent that

g others rely upnn such concealment, suppression or omission whether or not
10 any person has in fact been misled, deceived or damaged thereby.
11 147, The catch-all term “unconscionable commercial practice” was added to the
12 || NJCFA by amendment in 1971 1o ensure that the Act covered, inter alia, “incomplete
13 |l disclosureb.” Skeer v. EMK Motors, Inc., 455 A.2d 508, 512 (N.J. Ct. App. 1982).
14 148,  In describing what constitutes an “unconscionable commercial practice,” the New
15 |i Jersey Supreme Court has noted that it is an amorphous concept designed to establish a broad
16 || business a!thic. See Cox v, Sears Roebuck & Co., 647 A.2d 454, 462 (N.J. 1794).
17 14'9. In order to state a cause of action under the NJCFA, a plaintiff does not need to
18 |} show relignce by the consumer. See Varacallo v. Massachusetts Mut. Life Ins. Co., 752 A.2d
19 {{ 807 (N.J. App. Div. 2000); Gennari v. Weichert Co. Realtors, 691 A.2d 35C (N.J. 1997) (holding
20 |l that reliance is not required in suits under the NJCFA because liability results from
21 || “misrepresentations whether 'any person has in fact been misled, deceived cr damaged thereby™).
22 lSIO. Rather, the NJCFA requires merely a causal nexus between the false statement
23 || and the p\chhase, not actual reliance. See Lee, supra, 4 A.3d at 579 (“causation under the
24 J’ [NJCFA] s not the equivalent of reliance™).
25 151.  As stated by the New Jersey Supreme Court in Lee, supra, 4 A.3d at 580, “It bears
26 I repeating that the [NJCFA] does not require proof of reliance, but only a causal connection
27 i between the unlawful practice and ascertainable loss.”
28
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152. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated the NJCFA. Specifically,

Defendants:

Set and advertised an arbitrary base price for numerous items on their websites,

bl

which price was represented to be the item’s “original” or “regular” price despite the fact
that such items were never sold or offered for sale at that price;

Continuously advertised and offered items for sale at a discount off their

=

utported base prices, when the “discounted” sale prices did not actually represent the
P p

advertised savings since the items were never offered for sale at their base prices;

¢.'  Represented that items were on sale and offered at discounted prices when in fact
the items were being offered for sale at their everyday, regular prices; and

d. ‘ Charged their customers the full, regular price for the items cn their websites
rather than the advertised sale or discounted price.

155. These uniform practices by Defendants constitute sharp and nnconscionable

commerci‘Fl practices relating to the sale of goods in violation of the NJCFA, N.J.S.A. § 56:8-1,

el seq.

154, As alleged herein, Defendant has engaged in deceptive conduct which creates a
likelihoodt of confusion or misunderstanding.

lsr. These actions also constitute “o;xlisgion{s] of any material fact with intent that
others rel)r upon such concealment,” as Defendants did not inform Plaintiff and the class
members ihat the items offered for sale on their websites were not actually discounted at all, but
rather weile being sold at their everyday, regular prices, Defendants purposefully omitted this
informati¢n so that their customers would believe that they were getting a discounted price on
the items Ith;y purchased from Defendants, when in fact they were not.
156. As such, Defendants have acted with knowledge that its conduct was deceptive
and with intent that such conduct deceive purchasers.
187. Moreover, because Defendant’s conduct described herein is a violation of 16

C.F.R. § 233.1, such conduct constitutes a per se violation of the CFA, N.J.S.A. § 56:8-1, et geq.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT PAGE 28 OF 36

Lro ey e

T

Cai s




LAW OFFICES OF TODD M. FRIEDMAN, P.C.

324 SoutH BEVERLY DRIVE #725

BEVERLY HiLLs, CA 90212

o0 ~) O L B W R) e

— b b e ek e
h B W RN = OO

16
17
8
19
20
21
22
23
24

26
27
28

25
i

N

H

Case 3:16-cv-03804-TEH Document 1-1 Filed 07/07/16 Page 32 of 54

158, Plaintiff and the class members reasonably and justifiably expected Defendants to

comply with applicable law, but Defendants failed to do so.

159.  As a direct and proximate result of these unlawfisl actions by Defendants, Plaintiff

and the New Jersey subclasses have been injured and have suffered an ascenainable loss of

money.
COUNT V1

VIQLATION OF THE NEW JERSEY TRUTH IN CONSUMER CONTRACT,
| WARRANTY AND NOTICE ACT, N.J.S.A. § 56:12-14, of seq.
{On Behalf of the New Jersey Subclasses)
160.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
160. Plaintiff brings this claim individually and on behalf of al} otaer New Jersey
subclass n?embers who were customers of Defendants’ online Gap Factory and Banana Republic
Factory stores.

162.  Plaintiff and the New Jersey subclass members are “consumers” within the

meaning ¢f N.J.S.A. §§ 56:12-15 and 16.
163. Defendants are “sellers” within the meaning of N.J.S.A. §§ £6:12-15 and 16.

164. The advertisements and representations on Defendants® webuites, stating, e.g., that
the items on the websites are being offered for sale at a discounted price, is both a consumer
“notice” dnd “warranty” within the meaning of N.J.5.A., §§ 56:12-15 and 16.

165. By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated N.J.S.A.. § 56:12-16 because,
in the course of Defendants’ business, Defendants have offered written consumer notices and
warranties to Plaintiff and the New Jersey subclass members which contained provisions that
violated their clearly established legal rights under state law and federal regulations, within the
meaning 6f N.J.S.A., § 56:12-15.

166.  Specifically, the clearly established rights of Plaintiff and the New Jersey

subclasscL under state law include the right not to be subjected o unconscionable commercial
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which acts are prohibited by the NJCFA, N.J.S.A. § 56:8-2.
147. Further, the clearly established rights of Plaintiff and the New Jersey subclasses

| under fedl ral law include the right not to be subjected to false advertising in violation of 16
CFR.§ L?:.l.

168. Pursuant to N.J.S.A. § 56:12-17, Plaintiff seeks a statutory pznalty of $100 for
each New Jersey subclass member, as well as actual damages and attorneys’ fees and costs.
i COUNT VII

BREACH OF CONTRACT

(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes and New Jersey Subtlasses)
169.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this
Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

170, Plaintiff and the class members entered into contracts with Defendants.

171, The contracts provided that Plaintiff and the class members would pay

Defendants for their products.

179, The contracts further provided that Defendants would provide Plaintiff and the
class menibers a specific discount on the price of their purchases. This specified discount was a
i

specific and material term of each contract.

and satisﬁ'Ed all other conditions of the contracts.

17 Defendants breached the contracts with Plaintiff and the class members by

failing to comply with the material term of providing the promised discount. and instead charged

Plaintiff ahd the class members the full price of the products they purchased.

175.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ breach, Plaintiff and the class

members have been injured and have suffered actual damages in an amount to be established at

trial.
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COUNT VII
BREACH OF CONTRACT UNDER THE IMPLIED COVENANT
OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes and New Jersey Subclasses)
176. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

177. There was no written contract between Defendants and their customers, including

Plaintiff ahd the class members.

178. Rather, by operation of the law of each state, there existed an implied contract for
the sale of goods between each customer whe purchased items from Defendants’ Gap Factory

and Banana Republic Factory store websites.

179. By operation of the law of each state, there also existed an implied duty of good

H faith and Apir dealing in each such contract.
18D, By the acts alleged herein, Defendants have violated that duty of good faith and

fair dealinig, thereby breaching the implied contract between Defendant and each class member.
| 18f.  Specifically, it was a violation of the duty of good faith and fair dealing for
Defendands to represent that the items on their websites were discounted when in fact they were

offered for sale at their regular prices, and to charge Plaintiff and class members the regular

prices for such items instead of the advertised, discounted prices.

182. Asadirect and proximate result of Defendants’ breach of the implied covenant of
good faith,and fair dealing, Plaintiff and the class members have been injured and have suffered
actual dan%ages in an amount to be established at trial,

COUNT 1X
BREACH OF EXPRESS WARRANTY
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes and New Jersey Subclasses)
18B.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complain{ as if fully set forth herein.

184,  Plaintiff and the class members formed contracts with Defendants at the time they
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purchased
and affirm
herein, ing

Factory an

items from Defendants’ websites. The terms of such contracts included the promises
ations of fact made by Defendants through their marketing campaign, as alleged
uding, but not limited {o, representing that the items for sale on Crefendants’ Gap

d Banana Republic Factory websites were being discounted.

183. This product advertising constitutes express warranties, becarne part of the basis

of the bargiain, and is part of the contracts between Defendants and Plaintiff and the class

members,

186. The affirmations of fact made by Defendants were made to induce Plaintiff and

the class nilembers to purchase items from Defendants’ websites.

187, Defendants intended that Plaintiff and the class members wonld rely on those

purchased

Defendan

| amount to

i

183.

have been|fulfilled by Plaintiff and the class members in terms of paying for the goods at issue,

representations in making their purchases, and Plaintiff and the class members did so.

All conditions precedent to Defendants’ liability under these express warranties

or have bden waived. Defendants had actual and/or constructive notice of tteir own false

advcrtisin'F, marketing, and sales practices but to date have taken no action to remedy their

breaches 4f express warranty.

189. Defendants breached the terms of the express warranty because the items

by Plaintiff and the class members did not conform to the description provided by

{s - that they were being sold at a discounted price. In fact, they were not.
190.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ breach of exress warranty,

Plaintiff and the class members have been injured and have suffered actual Jamages in an

be established at trial.
COUNT X
UNJUST ENRICHMENT
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes and New Jersey Subclasses)

1. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

Complaini as if fully set forth herein.

192.  This claim is asserted in the alternative to a finding of breach of contract, This

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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items they

knowingly

19

claim asserts that it is unjust to allow Defendants to retain profits from their deceptive,
! misleading, and unlawful conduct alleged herein,

198. Plaintiff and the class members were charged by — and paid - Defendants for the

purchased from Defendants’ websites. Consequently, Plaintiffs znd the classes have

conferred substantial benefits on Defendants by purchasing the items, and Defendants have

and willingly accepted and enjoyed these benefits.

4. Defendants represented that these items were discounted, with the specific intent

that such fepresentation would induce customers to purchase said items.

195,

5. As detailed herein, the items purchased by Plaintiff and the class members were

not discounted.

196. Because the items were advertised as being discounted when they actually were

not, Deferdants collected more money than they would have if the items were discounted as

promised,

197,

As a result of these complained-of actions by Defendants, Defendants received

benefits under circumstances where it would be unjust for them to retain these benefits.

198. Defendants have knowledge or an appreciation of the benefit conferred upon them

by Plaintiff and the class members.

195,

Equity demands disgorgement of Defendants’ ill-gotten gains. Defendants will be

unjustly enriched unless Defendants are ordered to disgorge those profits fo: the benefit of

Plaintiff apd the class members.

200. Plaintiff and the class members are entitled to restitution and’or disgorgement of

all profits,

deceptive,

Complain

benefits, and other compensation obtained and retained by the Dufendants from their
misleading, and unlawful conduct described herein.
COUNT XI
NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
(On Behalf of the Nationwide Classes and the New Jersey Subclasses)

" 20). Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs of this

as if fully set forth herein.

CLASS ACY
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202. Defendants have negligently represented that the items offered for sale on their
Gap Facto{y and Banana Republic Factory store websites are discounted, when in fact they are

not.
203. This is a material fact that Defendants have misrepresented to the public,
including Plaintiff and the class members.
204. Defendants know that the prices of the items offered for sale on their websites -
and specifically whether such prices are discounted or sale prices — are material to the reasonable
consumer,|and Defendants intend for consumers to rely upon such misstatements when choosing

to purchase items from their websites,

205.  Defendants knew or should have known that these misstatements or omissions
would materially affect Plaintiff's and the class members’ decisions to purchase items from their
websites.

206.  Plaintiff and other reasonable consumers, including the class members,
reasonably relied on Defendants’ representations set forth herein, and, in reliance thereon,
purchased|iterns from Defendants’ websites.

20f.  The reliance by Plaintiff and the class members was reasonable and justified in

that Defendants appeared to be, and represented themselves to be, a reputab e business.

20’8. Plaintiff and the class members would not have been willing to pay for the items
they purchased, or would not have paid what they paid for the items they purchased, if they knew
that such items were not in fact discounted from their everyday, regular prices.

209.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ misrepresentations, Plaintiff and
the class members were induced to purchase items from Defendants’ websiles, and have suffered
damages 10 be determined at trial, in that, among other things, they have becn deprived of the
benefit of [their bargain in that they bought a items that were purported to be discounted, when in
fact they were not.

210. Plaintiffs seek all available remedies, damages, and awards as a result of

Defendants’ negligent misrepresentations.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray that this case be certified and maintained as a class action

and for judgment to be entered in favor of Plaintiff and the classes against Defendants as follows:

A, Enter an order certifying the proposed classes, designating Plaintiff as the
representative for each class, and designating the undersigned as class counsel;
Declare that Defendants are financially responsible for notifying all class
membars of their deceptive advertising, sales, and marketing practices alleged herein;

C. Declare that Defendants must disgorge, for the benefit of the classes, all or
part othhe ill-gotten profits they received from their deceptive advertising, sales, and
marketing practices alleged herein, or order Defendants to make full restitution to Plaintiffs
and thg members of the ¢lasses;

Find that Defendants’ conduct alleged herein be adjudged and decreed in
violation of the state laws cited above;

iE, Grant economic and compensatory damages on behalf of Plaintiff and all

membirs of the classes, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable aw;

. Grant punitive or exemplary damages as permitted by law;
G Grant the requested injunctive and declaratory relief;
H. Award interest as permitted by law;

L Grant reasonable attorneys’ fees and reimbursement all ccsts incurred in the

prosecytion of this action; and

1 Grant such other relief as this Court deems just and proper.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

21Y.  Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.

Dated: May 24, 2016

/ -
LAW OFFICES OF-TODD M EDMAN, P.C.
/
By: . /
Todd M. Féfedman, Esq.
and

PARIS ACKERMAN & SCHMIERER LLP
Ross H. Schmierer, Esq. (pro hac vice rending)
ross@paslawfirm.com

103 Eisenhower Parkway

Roseland, NJ 07068

Tel: 973-228-4860

Fax: 973-629-1246

and

DeNITTIS OSEFCHEN, P.C.

Stephen P, DeNittis, Esq, (pro hac vice pending)
sdenittis@denittislaw.com

5 Greentree Centre

525 Route 73 North, Suite 410

Marlton, NJ 08053

Tel.: (856) 797-9951

Fax: (856) 797-9978

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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3212016 Factory multi-stripe swim trunks | Gap Factory

= Q

We've redirected you to this page to help you find 8870110010002,

Factory multi-stripe swim trunks
$24-99 32% off

hiip www gapfactory combronselproduct do?user SearchTexd=88701100100028md=887011001
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22016 Factory multl-stripa swim trunis | Gap Factory

Now $16.99

Color: multi 1cc

Size:
XS S M L XL XXL
Fit & Sizing

Quantity:

1

ADD TO BAG

SIZE GUIDE

fabric & care

- 100% Polyester.
- Machine wash
- Imported.

product details

shipping & returns

STORE LOCATOR
CUSTOMER SERVICE

ORDERS & RETURNS

GIFT CARDS
GAP CREDIT CARD

EMAIL SIGN UP

hitpAvww gaplactory.convbrowse/product do?user SearchText=86701100100028p1d=887011001

23
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22016 Factory mulll-stripe swim trunks | Gap Factory

SHOP BANANA REPUBLIC FACTORY

© 1997 - 2016 Gap Inu | Piivacy Polivy | lilerest Based Ads | Your Califurnia Privacy Righis | Terms of Use | Careers |
Socal Responsibiliiy] About Gap Inc.

Americans with Disabilities Act

Gap Faclory Banana Republlc Faclory

hitp Hhawww g aplaclory comibrowselproduct do?userSearchText=88701100100028pid= 887011001
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32Y2016 Factory Dolman Pontlelle Sweater | Banana Republlc Factory

= Q

You have been redirected to this page as a result of your search for "1818810110002".

Factory Dolman Pontielle Sweater
$54:99 16% off

hitp #fbananarepublicfactory gapfactory.combrowse/product dotuser SearchText=18188101100028md= 181881011
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V212016 Factory Doiman Pontielle Sweater § Banana Republic Factory

Now $45.98

Color: Blue fairy

clearance

o L0 0K

FIT & SIZING SIZE GUIDE
- Hits af the hip.

Quantity:

1

ADD TO BAG

FABRIC & CARE

- 50% Acrylic, 50% Viscose,
- Machine wash.

- Imported.

PRODUCT DETAILS

SHIPPING & RETURNS

BANANA REPUBLIC FACTORY
EXCLUSIVE PRODUCTS,
EXCEPTIONAL SAVINGS

Love what you see?
Find even more greaf styles in sfore.

hitp-/foananarepublicfactory gapfaciory.corvtyowse/product.do?user SearchTex=18188101100028pid= 181881011
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226 Factory Dolman Pontrelie Swealer | Banana Repubiic Faclory

Deals straight to your phonel
TEXT DEALTO 28500

Receive a coupon &
future offers to your phone!
DETAILS

STORE LOCATOR
CUSTOMER SERVICE

ORDERS & RETURNS
BANANA REPUBLIC CREDIT CARD
EMAIL SIGN UP

SHOP GAP FACTORY

© 2001-2016 BananaRepublicfactory.com | Privacy Policy | Inleiest Based Ads | Your California Privacy Rights | Terms of
Use } Careers | Social Responsibility | About Gap Inc

Americans with Disabiliies Aot

Gap Factory  Banana Republic Factory

htip. /bananarepubliclactory g apfactory combrowse/product do?user SearchText= 18188101100026 prd= 181851011
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¥21/12016 Factory Golorblock Ponte Sheath | Banana Repubiic Factory

= Q

You have been redirected to this page as a result of your search for *1824830010010".

Factory Colorblock Ponte Sheath
$89-99 50% off

hilp /fbananarepublicfactor y.gapfactory combrowsefproduct doTuser SearchT ext= 18248300100105pid= 182483001
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212016 Factory Colorblock Ponte Sheath | Banana Republic Factory

Now $44.98

Color: Maroon

A

Size:
0 2 4 é 8 10 12
FIT & SIZING

- Hits at the knee

Quantity:
1

ADD TO BAG

FABRIC & CARE

- 66% Rayon, 29% Nylon, 5% Spandex.
- Dry clean.

- Imported.

PRODUCT DETAILS

SHIPPING & RETURNS

14

SIZE GUIDE

BANANA REPUBLIC FACTORY
EXCLUSIVE PRODUCTS,
EXCEPTIONAL SAVINGS

Love what you see?
Find even more great siyles in store,

htip.fbananarepublicfactory gapfactory comvbrowsefproduct doTuser SearchT ext= 182483001001 08pd= 182483001

23




Case 3:16-cv-03804-TEH Document 1-1 Filed 07/07/16 Page 49 of 54
212016 Factory Colerbiock Ponte Sheath | Banana Republic Factory

Deals straight to your phonel
TEXT DEAL TO 28500

Receive o coupon &
future offers to your phone!
DETAILS

STORE LOCATOR
CUSTOMER SERVICE

ORDERS & RETURNS
BANANA REPUBLIC CREDIT CARD
EMAIL SIGN UP

SHOP GAP FACTORY

& 2001-2016 BananaRepublicfaclory com | Pravacy Policy | Interest Based Ads { Your California Privacy Rights | Terms of
Use | Careers | Sacial Responsihility | Ahoul Gap Ine.

Amertcans with Dusabilites Acl

Gap Factory ~ Banana Republic Factory

Hiip #bananarepubliclactory gapfaciory combrowse/product douserSearchTexdt= 1824830010010&pid= 182483001
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EXHIBIT B

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
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382016 Order Datafls | Gap Factory

= Q

Order #TQVB4B6
Ordered on: March 15, 2016 10.46 PM (EDT) from gapfactory.com
Status: In Process

Returns QOrder history QOrder status heip

Order details

ORDERED BY

Laurie Munning

@ed ACTED 8

Payment method:

REORCTED

SHIPPED TO

Laurie Munning

EosoTED '8

Shipping method:

SUMMARY OF CHARGES

Merchandise
Shipping & handling
Tax

Total:

¥ in stock: Available to ship

hitps fsscure-www.gapfactory.comiprofileforder_tustory.go?isNav=true

$107.95

FREE

$0 00

$107.95
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¥152016 Order Detalls | Gap Factory

A Factory multi-stripe swim trunks
F44 #8870110010002

Color multi 1cc
Size XS
Unit price $24-09 $16.99
Qty 1
Cost $16.99

X Factory Colorblock Ponte Sheath
#1824830010010

Color Maroon
Size 10
Unit price  $89-99 $44.98
Qty 1
Cost $44.98

,(“"’7 Factory Dolman Pontielfe Sweater

f #1818810110002
it

Color Blue fairy
Size M
Unit price $54.99 $45.98
Qty 1
Cost $45.98

STORE LOCATOR
CUSTOMER SERVICE

ORDERS & RETURNS

GIFT CARDS
GAP CREDIT CARD

EMAIL SIGN UP

SHOP BANANA REPUBLIC FACTORY

hitps Hsecure-www.gapfactory com/iprofilelorder_history dohsNav=true

Page 52 of 54
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1512016 Order Deteils | Gap Factary

1997 - 2016 Gap Inc: | Privacy Pohiey | Interes! Based Ads | Your Callfamia Privacy Righls | Terms of Use | Careers |
Social Responsibility | Aboul Gap Inc.

Amernicans with Disabilites Act

hitps fisecure-www.gaplactory.comiprofilefarder_tistory do?isMav=true
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CASE NUMBER: CGC-16-652215 LAURIE MUNNING VS. THE GAP, INC. ET AL
NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF

A Case Management Conference is set for:

DATE: OCT-26-2016
TIME: 10:30AM

PLACE: Department 610
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 94102-3680

All parties must appear and comply with Local Rule 3.

CRC 3.725 requires the filing and service of a case management statement form CM-110
no later than 15 days before the case management conference. However, it would facilitate
the issuance of a case management order without an appearance at the case
management conference if the case management statement is filed, served and lodged in
Department 610 twenty-five (25) days before the case management conference.

R

Plaintiff must serve a copy of this notice upon each party to this action with the summons and

complaint. Proof of service subsequently filed with this court shall so state. This case is
eligible for electronic filing and service per L.ocal Rule 2.11. For more information,
please visit the Court's website at www.sfsuperiorcourt.org under Online Services.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY REQUIREMENTS

IT 1S THE POLICY OF THE SUPERIOR COURT THAT EVERY CiVIL
CASE PARTICIPATE IN EITHER MEDIATION, JUDICIAL OR NON-
JUDICIAL ARBITRATION, THE EARLY SETTLEMENT PROGRAM OR
SOME SUITABLE FORM OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PRIOR TO A TRIAL.

(SEE LOCAL RULE 4)

Plaintiff must serve a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information Package on each
defendant along with the complaint. All counsel must discuss ADR with clients and opposing
counsel and provide clients with a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution information
Package prior to filing the Case Management Statement.

[DEFENDANTS: Attending the Case Management Conference does not take the
place of filing a written response to the complaint. You must file a written
response with the court within the time limit required by law. See Summons.]

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Coordinator
400 McAllister Street, Room 103 '
San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 551-3869

See Local Rules 3.3, 6.0 C and 10 B re stipulation to judge pro tem.
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as
provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the
purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS DEFENDANTS
The Gap, Inc.; Gap (Apparel) LLC; Gap International Sales, Inc.;

Laurie Munning, individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated | Banana Republic LLC; and Banana Republic (Apparel) LLC

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff ~ Gloucester County, NJ County of Residence of First Listed Defendant ~ San Francisco County, CA
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NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.
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odd M. Friedman, Esq. (SBN 2167 é) Joseph Du (SBN 241854); Esther K. Ro (SBN 252203)

Law Offices of Todd M. Friedman Morgan Lewis & Bockius, LLP

324 S. Beverly Dr. #725, Beverly Hills, CA 90212 (877) 206-4741 300 S. Grand Ave. #2200, Los Angeles, CA 90071 (213) 612.2500
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O 1 Original X2 Removed from O 3 Remanded from O 4 Reinstated or [ 5 Transferred from (O 6 Multidistrict
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened ,(Anot}%/e)r District Litigation
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Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):

Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d) ("CAFA")

Brief description of cause: Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and proposed classes, complains for damages, injunctive relief,
and declaratory relief for alleged violations of consumer fraud statutes and common law.

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION
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The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet. Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
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statutes unless diversity. Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553 Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service
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